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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as
at March 31, 2028, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the

Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the f{inancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
*Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
‘ICATD) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s Director’s Report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
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When we read the Company’s Director’s Report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary action, as applicable
under the relevant laws and regulations

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting  Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates thar are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
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uncerainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

!»J

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books:

(¢) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference 1o these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

() In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, no remuneration has been
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year.

(h) With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;
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ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed

vi.

in the note 51(A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (gither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwrse. that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or mdlreclly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiary™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiary;

b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed

in the note 51(B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”). with the
understandmg whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

Interim dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company is in accordance
with Section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination which included test checks. the Company has used an accourting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reﬁgistration Number: 103429W

i

Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership Number: 039070

UDIN: 25039090 hM 1 T.KE 8 iy

Place: Mumbai
Date: &\'\d M&ai‘j ’ &Clz:’;
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Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report
The Annexure referred to in_our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Allium Corporate
Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited) (‘the Company’) on the
financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025, we report that:

®
(a) {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a}(B) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company

(b) As explained to us, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property. plant
and equipment by which all the property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In our opinion this periedicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no immovable property. held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable o the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year ended March 31. 2025.

(e) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no proceedings
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company’s business does not involve inventories and. accordingly. the requirement to report on
clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate
from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of
current assets., Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(iif) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management. during
the year the Company has not made any investments in, or provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured. to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Parterships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report under
clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, guarantees. and
security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent
applicable. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained by the management of the Company, the Company is not in
the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed /s 148 (1) of Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the requirement 1o report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory
dues, applicable to it, have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities. The provisions relating to employees” state insurance, sales tax, service tax,
duty of excise, duty of custom, value added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of provident fund,
employee state insurance, service tax, goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, The provisions relating to duty of excise,
duty of custom, sales tax, value added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company. The dues
outstanding in respect of income tax on account of dispute, are as follows:

Name of Statute Nature of the | Amount (Rs) Period to which | Forum where the
dues the amount relates | dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 4,40,900 A.Y.2020-21 DCIT

1961

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 32,55,337 AY.2023-24 DCIT

1961

(viii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the vear.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other
lender.

(¢) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year, Hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary. associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement 1o
report on clause 3{ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) () According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us, during the year, no report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form
ADT ~ 4 as prescribed under Rule '13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clauses 3(xii)(a) to 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

(xiil)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv})  (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

{(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date for the period under
audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us. the provisions of section 43-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

(¢) Based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the
regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management. the Group has one Core
Investment Company as part of the Group.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year as well
as in the immediately preceding financial year.

{(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note n0.53 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and pavment of financial labilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
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report that Company is not capable of meeting its labilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no unspent amounts in respect of other than ongoing projects, that
are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been
disclosed in note 27.B 1o the financial statements.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts in respect
of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision
of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 27.B to the
financial statements.

(xxi)  The Report is part of standalone financials of the Company hence the requirement to report on clause
3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Rew Number: 103420W

Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership Number: 039070

UDIN: 25029070 BMHTZKE d4TY

Place: Mumbai
Date: &r\é M@‘Lj ;&O'l 5
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Annexure B to the Auditors’ Report

Annexure B the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the financial statements of Allium Corporate
Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited) (“the Company™)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Allium Corporate Services Private
Limited (Formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAL’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Conirols over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing. issued by 1CAI and
deemed 10 be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and. both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use. or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in alf
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accouptants
[CA] Firm Regi fation Number; 103429W

H \{\;\Eﬁ\ £
Jvey
Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership Number: 039070
UDIN: 25059070 6MH 1K €3 utly

Place: Mun}bai
Date: 9@ May 2018




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Allium Finance Private Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

{Currency : indian Rupsees in Thousands}

Asat As at
Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Norn-current assets
Proparty, Plant and Equipment 7 75.00 -
Current tax assets (net) 8 10,960.81 3,13155
Deferced tax assets {net} 9 143.48 ~
Other non-cuirent assets 1 4,593.69 1,934.03
15,778,98 5,065.58
Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivaients 1 £,40,£94.44 14,31,085.55
Other financial assets 12 382,00 -
6,40,876.44 14,31,035.58
TOTAL ASSETS 6,56,655.42 14,36,101.17
EQUITY AND UABILITIES
EQuUITY
Equily share capital 13 53,134.15 68,257.24
Other equity 12 5,21,938.73 13,65,551.93
5,75,072.88 14,33,809.17
LIABIITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 15 51331 -
513.11 -

Current Hiabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 48.44 -
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small emterprises -
- totai outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 17 4,663.07 319.14

and smali enterprises

QOther financial liabilities 18 . 17.18

Other curtent Habilities 19 65,885.36 17.03

Provisions 15 84.00 -

Current tax lizbilites {net] 20 10,428.56 1,938.65
81,069.43 2,292.00

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,56,655.42 14,36,101.17

Material accounting policies and notes to the financial statements 11054

As per our repart of even date attached.

For GMJ & Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.403425W

H

- / >
&ﬂ N }ﬁﬁé@*‘*’ g‘ % 2 Qg Ja..,
=
Haridas Bhat Rajee‘v‘/ ¥handal Bharat Bakshi
Partnar Director Director
Membership No: 038070 DIN 1 07340335 DIN: 07648220
Mumbai Mumbai

02 May 2025 02 May 2028




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Alliurs Finance Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Currancy : Indian Rupees in Thousands)

Note For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
. Revenue from operations
Interest income 21 - 1,52,835.93
Fee and commission income a2 64,246.18 -
Net gain / {loss) on fair value changes 23 - 4,381.52
Total Revenue from operations £4,246.18 1,57,212.45
1. Other income 24 96,990.69
iH. Yotalincome 1,61,236.87 1,57,217.45
IV, Expenses
Finance costs 25 £02.94 87.21
impairment on financial instruments 26 - {7.672.26)
Emplayes benefits expense 27 6,262.57 4.50
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 7 9.93 -
Other expenses 28 72,430.23 5,41653
Total expenses 79,310.67 {1,171.02}
V. Profit before tax 81,926.20 1,58,388.47
Vi, Tax expenses:
Current tax 28 21,994.28 34,055.20
Deferred tax {143.48) {1,134.40}
Vi Profit after tax 60,075.38 1,25,867.67
Other Comprehensive income
tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
~ Remneasurement gain / {loss) on defined benefit plans {OC1) 36.00 -
Total 36.00 -
Total Comprehensive Income £0,111.39 1,25,467.67
Earnings per equity share {Face value of % 10 each):
Basic and Diluted (in %) 32 889 18.38
Material accounting policies and notes to the financial statements 1to54
As per our report of even date attached.
For GV} & Co. . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountan
Firm's Registeation Mo, 103429W
3 i -
ASm \ &
e e/ Pt ;?) Mu
.' oo, .
Haridas Bhat Rajeav Khandal Bharat Bakshi
Partner Director Director
Wembership No: 039070 DIN : 07320336 DIN : 07648220
Mumbai Rurmbat
02 May 2025 G2 May 2025
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Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Allium Finsnce Private Limited}

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Currency : Indian Rupeaes in Thousands}

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

A [Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation 81,926.20 1,58,388.47
Adjustments for
Provision for Employee Benefit Expenses 18511 -
Deprecistion 9.93 -
Expected credit loss provision - {7,679.26)
Interest Income on investment . (4.65}
Net gain on fair value changes - {2,381.52}
Interest expense 58.06 -
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 82,1859.30 1,46,323.04
Adjustments for working capital changes
Decrease / (Incroase) in receivable from financing business - 2,39,072.40
Decrease / {Increase) in other financial assets {382.00) -
Decrease / {Increase) in other non financial assets {2,665.66} {20202}
{Decrease} / Increase in short term provision 418.00 .
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables 4,323.93 181,99}
{Decrease} / Increase in other financial Fabilities - {5.55}
{Decrease} / ncrease in other non financial liabilities 65,851.16 {75.13)
Cash generated from / {used in} operations 1,48,734.73 3,85.077.72
Income taxes paid {21,333.65) (32.285.97)}
et cash generated from / {used in} operating activities - A 1,28,401.08 2,52,751.75
8 {Cash flow from investing activities
Sale/{purchase} of fixed assets {84.93) -
Interest on investment - 4,65
Prozeeds from redernption of security receipts - 10,75,837.61
Net cash generated from / {used in} investing activities- 8 {84.93}: 10,75,842.26
¢ {Cash flow from financing activities
Buy back of own equity shares (3,18,431.78) -
Interim dividend paid to equily sharehotders {6,00,415.90) -
interest paid {8.62) -
Net cash used in financing activities - C {9,18,857.30) -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {7,90,541.15) 14,28,634.01
Cash and cash equivaent as a1 the beginning of the year 14,31,035.53 240158
Cash and cash equivalent as 2t the end of the year 5,40,494.44 14,31,035.59

As per our report of even date attached.

For GM! & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
firm's Registration §b. 103429W

Haridas Bhat

Partner

Membership No: 038070
Mumbai

02 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesv Khandal
Director

OIN : 07340336
Mumbai

02 May 2025

Bharat Bakshi
Ditector
DIN : 07648220




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Allium Finante Private Umited)

Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2025

{Currency < Indian Rupoes in Thousands)

A, Eguity share capital

partieatars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
s a1 01 April 2024 lssuefi [{buy back}| Asat 331 March | Asat 01 April | Issued during the | As at 31 March
during the yesr 2025 2023 year 2024
Equity Share capital £8,257.2¢ {15,123.09} 5313415 17.343.3% 50,813.85 £8,257.24
8. Instrumants eatirely equity in nature
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2025
issuad
N Issued fredeemed | As at 31 March | As at 01 April As at 31 March
A 4
A U01 APl 028 ) e the vear 2025 2023 Jredeemed 2024
duting the vear
0.01% - G C iGle None
Preference shares - "Serjes A" - - - 50,513.85 154,913.85) -

€. Other equity

jParticulars
Special Reserve
. undar section 45 Capital
::;“m'::: 1Cof the Reserve | Redemption ::::::’ Totat
Bank of India Act, Reserve
1934

Balznce at 31 March 2023 5,24,808.26 1,38,387.81 - 4,76,889.15 12,40,084.26
Profit for the year - . - 12546757 1,25,457.67
Onher comprehenstve income - : . - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year = - - 1,25,467.67 1,25,867.67
Transfers 1o / from reteined earnings 25,093.53 : {23,053,53} -
Balance at 31 March 2024 6,24,808.26 1.,63,481.34 - 5,97,262.33 13,65,551.93
Profit for the vear - - - £0,075.33 £0,075.38
Oiher comprehensive intome. - 5 - 3600 36.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - £0,111.39 $0,111.39
interim dividend paid {0 equity sharchotders . “ - {6,00,415.90] {6,00,415.90}/
Buy back of equity shares {3,03,308.68} - - - {3.03,308.69);
Transiers o/ from retainad eamings = 1163481 34} 3532309 1.48,388.25 -
Balance at 31 March 2025 3,21,488.57 - 15.123.09 1,85,316.07 52193873

Nature and purpose of Reserves

a.  Securities Premiom Reserve
Securities premium reserve s used 1o record the pramium on issug of shares. The reserve can be utilised onty for limited purposes suth as ssuante of bonus shares and buy back of own
shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

b, Special Reserve
Reserve created under 45-1C(1} of The Reserve Bank of India At 1934, 3 sum gt fess than twenty per cont of s net profit every year, 2 distlosed in the statemen: of profit and loss
account and before any dividend is declared. The Company has received approval on its application to surrender its NBFC licanse from Reserve Bank of India ("RBI"} vide oder dated May
30, 2024 for canceliption of NBFC hicense in terms of Section 45-14 of the RB1 Aat. Hence, creation of Spetist Reserve under section 45-iC of the Reserve Bank of Indiz Ast, 1934 is ngt
appiitable to the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025, Hence, the same has baeo transferred to ratained earmings.

¢.  Capital Redemption Reserve
As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when Company purchases its cwn shares tut of free reserves or secunties premium. A sum equal o the nominal value
of the shates &0 i 10 capital feserve.

d.  Retained Earnings
Retained eamnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed earnings aftar taxes.

A per our report of gven date amtached,
For GMI & Co. /

Chantersd A:counxﬁf
Firm's Rugistration B, 303429W

fir=

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors

[ g

Haridas Bhat Rajeev Khandal Bharat Bakshi
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 039076 DIN: 07340336 DIN : 07648220
Mumbail Mumbai

02 May 2025 02 May 30




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited

(formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements

Corporate information:

Allium Corporate Services Private Limited {‘the Company’} a private limited company domiciled and
incorporated in india on March 18, 2008 under the provisions of the Companies Act is a subsidiary of
Edel Finance Company Limited. With effect from 01 October 2024, the Company has started the
business of providing project management services including due diligence and compliance.

Basis of preparation

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time).

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOC!) instruments, derivative financial instruments, fair value through profit and loss
account and other financial assets held for trading, which have been measured at fair value. The
Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in thousand (INR), except when
otherwise indicated.

Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in compliance with the Division 1I of the Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle
on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

» The normal course of business
s The event of default
« The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and or its counterparties

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or
consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle or it is held primarily for the purpose of being
traded or it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date or it is cash or cash
equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or expected to be used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date. Current assets include the current portion of non-current
assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited

{formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements

4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

MURMBAL
FRN No,

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating
cycle or it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded or it is due to be settled within 12 months
after the reporting date or the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of the liability that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification. Current liabilities include current portion of non-current liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current,

Material accounting policies

Recognition of interest income and fee income
Effective interest rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 108 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVOCL. The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial asset.
Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and
other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalty interest and charges.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit
risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset
in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

Interest income:

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Company
calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected credit loss) of the
financial asset, If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to
calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Fee income:

Fee income including advisory fees is accounted for on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms
and contracts entered into between the Company and the counterparty.

Financial instruments:

Date of recognition:

Financial Assets and financial liabilities with exception of ioans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The Company 1, i
borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited

(formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.3

4.3.1

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit and loss:

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the
fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the
Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain / loss on
fair value changes. in those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are
not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only
recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is
derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in profit
and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. The
Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting date. The
changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

Financial assets and liabilities:
Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited

(formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees,
and derivative financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have
been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon
initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

e The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses onthemon a
different basis; or

« The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy; or

« The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly
modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or
no analysis when 2 similar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded
derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities
designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are
recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest
earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost,
respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs
being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at
FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited

(formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4.4

4.5

4.6

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business

line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial instruments:
Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of 3 financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

»  The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

e It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party under
pass through arrangement.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same fender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition ofa
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets:
The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all financial assets, other than financial

assets held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts. Equity
instruments are not subject to impairment.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited

{formetly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

General approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk {SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from ail possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on 2 financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default (EAD). The assessment of
the PD and LGD is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the EAD, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at
the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by
default date determined based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:
Stage 1 assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
{resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12
months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 3 assets:

Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

For financial assets, ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company recognises an impairment loss
or reversal of impairment loss in the profit and loss statement with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through 2 loss allowance account.

The Company’s product offering includes a facilities with a right to company to cancel and/or reduce
the facilities with one day's notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Company’s
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4.7

4.8

expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company’s future risk
mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

Write-offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value;

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either;

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of uncbservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments
are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:
Those that include one or more unohservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation technigues
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.
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4.10

4.11

4.10.1

- 4.10.2

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its
financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates
the expected net exposure per counterparty over the fuil lifetime of the individual assets, in order to
reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis
and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts
to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential
equity shares.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. Transactions in currencies other than Indian
Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not translated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefit
Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a
defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity
The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of
the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.
The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
{excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings throu,
OC1 in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.
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4.103 Compensated Absences
The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual
leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the
statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting accumulated leave
entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

4.12 Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life
are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised 5o as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a
written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever
is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the
useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule It for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful life
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment S years

Computers - Servers and networks 6 years

Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the timeof
replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

4.13 Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount
of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impai
is reversed subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited

(formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

4.14

4.15

4.15.1

4.15.2

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value
using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed
as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote,
are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses:
income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited

{formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {continuedy)

4.15.3

4.16

6.1

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comnprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the management
has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how Company’s financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether
there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those
assets.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Significant increase in credit risk:

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2
or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. When the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets,
they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and
counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural Jife of loans
given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument.

Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that
are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:
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6.6

6.7

6.8

¢ PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

*  The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and
the qualitative assessment.

« The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
s Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

« Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such
as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

s Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

it is Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exist, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

Provisions and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has 2 heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these
estimates.

Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment
on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can
involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Aftium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Aflium Finance Private Limited}

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currancy : indian Rupees in Thousands)

As a1 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Current Hon Current Total Current Assets Non Current Tota)
8 Current tax assets {net]
Advance income taxes {net of grovision for taxation] 10,960.81 10,980.81 313155 3,131.55
- 10,860.81 10,960.81 - 3,131.55 3,131.58
9 Deferred tax assets (net)
£mpioyes benefit obligations
Provision for compensated absences and gratuity 145.26 145.26 -
Propeny. plant and equinment and intangibies
Cifference between back and tax depreciation * - {1.78} (178} -
he 143.48 143.48 - - -
10 Other non-current assets
{Unsecured Considered good, uniess stated otherwise}
input tax credit - 4,500.55 4,560.55 1.928.14 1.928.14
Prepaid expenses $4.20 - -
Vendor advances 494 589 588
- 4,589.69 4,599.69 - 1,834.03 1,934.03
11 Cash and cash equivalents
Balanzes with banks 40,042.38 4004238 30,168.87 30,168.87
Fixed deposits with maturity fess than 3 months 8,00,452,06 §,00.452.08 14,00,866.72 14,00,866.72
6,40,494.44 - 5,40,494.44 14,31,035.58 - 14,31,035.59
12 Other financial assets
Unsecurad considered good
Advances recoverable in cash of in kind of for value to be
recaived 38200 382.00 -
382.00 - 332.00 - -




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Allium Finance Private Uimited)

Notes to the financial staternents {Continued)
{Currancy : Indian Rupees in Thousands}

As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
13 Equity share capital
Autharised ;
71,00,000 {Previous year: 71,00,000} Equity shares of X 10 each 71,005.00 73.000.00
55,00,000 {Previous year: 55,600,000} nce shares of 2 10 each 55,000.00
26,
S ——

issued, subscribed and paid up:
53,13,415 {Previous year: 68,25,724) Equity shares of 210 each, fully paid-up £8.257.25

68,257.24

a.  Movement in share copital :
Equity Shares 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No of shares Amount Noof shares Armount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 68,253,724 88,257.24 17.34,33¢ 17,343.38
Shares issued during the year - - 50,91,385 50,9i3.85%
Shares buy back during the year {15,12,309] 115,123.09) - -
Qutgtanding at the end of the year 53,13,315 53,133.15 68,25,724 68.257.24

The Company has only one ciass of equity shares having 3 par value of X 10/-, Each holder of equity shares is entitied 10 one vote per share held. In the event of
liguidation of the Company, the holdars of equity shares will be entitted 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of sgquity shares helt by the shareholders.

b.  Shares held by holding/ultimate holding pany andfor theit

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Equity Shate No of shares * No of shares %
Holding company
Edel Finance Company Limited 53,113,415 . -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 50,34,668 73.75%
Edeicap Securities Limitad 6,931,056 14.52%
53,1318 100.00% 60,25,724 88.28%
¢ Details of shares held by Equity shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
31 March 2025 31 March 2026
No of shares % No of shares 5%
Edeiweiss Rural & Corporate Services limited - 0.00% 50,34,868 73.76%
RMS Automation Systems Limited - 0.00% 23,00,000 11.72%
Edelcap Sepurities Umited - 0.00% 5,91,056 14.52%
£del Finance Company Limited 5313415 100.00% - 0.00%
83,13 415 100.00% £8,25724 100.00%

PR A5 R 4.5 A e e

d.  Details of shares held by promoters in the company

31 March 2025
Noofshares % of total shares % changed during
the year

£dei Finance Company Limited 53,313,415 100.00% 100.00%
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited -« 0.60% ~73.76%

31 March 2024
Noofshares % of total shares % changed during
the year
Edelwaiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 50,34,668 73.76% 19.80%

Note: During the year, the Company has bought back 1,512,309 Equity shares from the holding company, £dej Finance Company Limited




Aflium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Allium Finance Private Limited}

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}

{Cutrency : indian Rupaes in Thousands)
Asat Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
131 Instruments entirely equity in nature

Nit {Previous year: Nif} 0.01% -~ Compulsorily Convertible Mon- cumulative Preference shares «
“Series A7 of 210 each, fully paid up

m—— e
a in € Isorily C ible Non- i f shares :
0.01% C¢ ily C iuble Non C: fe Share-"Series A (CCPS « A) 31 March 2025 33 March 2024
Ho of shares Amount No of shares Armount
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year - . 50,931,385 50,913.8%
Shates converted during the year - - {$0,91,385] {50,913.85}

Qutstanding at the end of the yesr

Terms/rights attached to 0.01% - Compulsorily Convertible Non- cumulative Preference shares - "Series AY {CCPS-A)

The Breferance Shares of the face value of T 10 eath were issued at the rate of % 125 per share, The Preference Shares were Compuisorily Convertile, The Preference
Shares carried 2 Non-cumulative dividend of 0.01%. During the tast yasr, these preference shares ware converted w Equity shares of 110 each.

& o

N
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Alliumn Corporate Services Private Limited
(Formarly Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : indian Rupees in Thousands)

34 Other Equity

As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Capital Redemption Reserve - Opening balanse - -
Add : Additions during the year on own equity shares buy back 15,123.0% -
15,123.08 -
Securities Premium 6,24,808.26 §,24,808.26
tess: Utiised on share buy back {3,03,308.68} -
3,21,498.57 6,24,808.26
Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1834 1,63/481.34 1,38,387.81
Add : Additions during the year i1,63.481.34) 25093.53
- 1,63,481.34
Retained Earnings
Opening balance 5,77,262.33 4,76,888.19
Add: Profit for the year £0,075.32 12546767
Adg: Gther comprehensive income for the year 36.00 -
Amount available for appropriation 6,37,373.72 €,02,355.86
Appropriations:
Less: Interim dividend paid 16,00,415.90) -
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve {15,123.09} -
Less: Transfer to Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 193¢ 1,63,481.34 (25,093.53}
1,85,316.07 5,77,262.33
5,21,938.73 13,65,551.93

Nature and purpose of Reserves

a.  Securities Premvium Reserve
Securities premium resarve is used ta record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be
and buy back of own shares in arcordance with the isions of the C ies Act, 2013,

od only for imited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares

b, Spedal Reserve
Reserve created under 35-1C{1} in The Raserve Bank of india Act, 1934 2 sum not fess than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disciosed in the profit and foss

account and before any dividend is declared. The Company has received approval on its application to surrender its NBFC license from Reserve Bank of fndia {“REI"}
vide order dated May 30, 2024 for tanceliation of NBEC litense in terms of Section 4514 of the RBI Act, Hence, creation of Special Reserve under section 45-1C of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 is not applicabie 1o the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025, Hence, the same has been transferred 10 retained sarnings.

¢« Capital redemption reserve
As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when Company purchases its swn shares out of free reserves or securities premium, A sum equal
10 the nominal value of the shares so is d 1o capital ion reserve.

d. Retained Earnings
Retained earnings comprises of the Company's undistributed eamings after taxes.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formeriy Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currancy » indian Rupees in Thousands}
Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2026
15 Provisions

Non Current

Gratuity 448.00 -
Campensated leave absences 65.41
513.141
Cusrent
Grawhy 51.00
Campensated absences 13.00 .
64.00 -
577.11 -

16 Borrowings

{At Amortised cost)
Unsecured
Loan from reiated parties - .
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 48.44 -
{4t interest rate ranging from 11.55% to 14.05% {Previous Year N}
48.44 -
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Current Non Current Non Current
Total Liabiliti Tot:
Uiabilities ___ Liabilities otal | Curentiiobilities  yiabilities otal
17 Trade Payables
Trade payables from non-reiated parties 3,208.28 - 3,208.2% 318,34 . 315.18
Trade payahles from related parties 1,434.78 - 1,434.78 - - .
- dues of micte enterprises and small
enterorises - N - - - -
dues to creditors other than micre
enterprises and smail enterorises 4,643.07 - 4,843.07 319.14 . 319.14
4,643.07 - 4,643.07 318.14 - 319.34
17 A Trade Payables - Ageing
As at 31 March 2025 0 ling for following periods from due date of receipt
th More than 3
" Unbitted Less than1 1-2 years 2-3years ore than Total
Particulars year years
(5} MSME - - - - - B
{it} Others 3,201.54 1,441.53 - - - 4,643.07
{iif} Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Dthers - - - - - -
Total 3,201.58 1,441.53 - - - 4,643.07
As 2t 31 March 2024 Outstanding for following periods from due date of receipt
tl 1 More than 3
. Unbilled Less than 1-2 years 2-3years ore than Tota!
Particulars year years
(i} MSME - - - - - -
{il} Others 318.14 - - - - 318.14
{iii) Disputed dues - MSME . - - - - -
() Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Totat 318,14 - - - - 319.14

17 B Details of dues to micro, medium and small enterprises
Trade payables includes Nil. (Previous vear: Nii) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006. During the year, the Company has paid an interest amount af % 0.03 thousand {previous year: Nil} to “Suppliers” registerad under this act. The

sforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company 1o its inguiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said act.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
(Formerly Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial staternants {Continued)
{Currency : Indian Rupees in Thousands}

Asat31March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
18 Other financial habilities

Others - 17.18

- 1718

18 Other current liahilities

Withholding taxes and other 1axes payatle 65,353.14 17.03
Others 53222 -
65,885.36 17.03

20 Current tax liabilities {net)

Provision for taxation {net of tax deducted at source and advance tax} 10.428.58 1,938.65

10,428.56 1,938.65




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian Rupees in Thousands}
For the year ended
31 tarch 2025 31 March 2024

21 interest Income
On financial assets measured at amortised cost

interest on Loans - 1,37,326.76
interest income from investments - 4.65
interest on deposits with bank . 15,504.52

- 1,52,835.93

22 Feeincome

Advisory and other fees 63,246.18 -

64,246.18 -

22.1 Feeincome
Service transferred at 2 point in time £4,246.18
Service transterred over time -

84,246,18 -
23 Netgain/ {loss} on fair value changes
On financial instruments designated at fair value through peofit or loss
Security receipls - 4,381.52
4,381.52
Fair value changes:
- Realised - 4,381.52
- Unrealised - .
Total Net gain/ {loss) on fair value changes - 4,381.52
24 Otherincome
interast on Income tax refund 438.74 -
Inerest on deposits with bank 5,375.75 -
interest income - Others 91,176.20 -

$6,990.69 -




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian Rupees in Thousands)

25 Finance costs

interest on borrowings
Financial and bank charges
Interest on shortfall in payment of Advance income Tax

26 Impairment on financial instruments
Expected Credit Loss

Provision for standard assets
Provision for non performing assets

27 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

58.06 -
7417 0.09
470.71 87.12
602,94 §7.21
. {929.32)
- (6,749.94)
- 17,679.26)
5,870.67 -
271.43 450
125.47 -

6,267.57 4.50




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formerly Allium Finance Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : indian Rupees in Thousands)
for the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
28  Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion 245.30 11.20
Auditors' remuneration (refer note below) 359.50 265.20
Communication 11.75 -
Directors’ sitting fees 300.00 250.00
Legal and professional fees 59,518.57 1,684.96
Printing and stationery 7.92 351
Rates and taxes 251 4.52
Rent 739.92 -
Electricity charges 20.13 -
Foreign exchange loss {net) 120.06 -
Computer expenses 3,550.41 -
Computer software 65.00 -
Corporate social responsibility -Donation {refer note below) 3,505.00 3,500.00
Clearing and custodian charges 45.00 22.50
Office expenses 12,75 0.50
Postage and courier 081 -
ROC expenses 75.40 475.00
Goods and service tax expenses 36.78 196.16
Stamp duty 47,77 0.03
Stock exchange expenses 3245 2.8%
Travelling and conveyance 3,657.76 -
Miscellaneous expenses 544

72,430.23 6,316.53
Notes :

28,A Auditors’ remuneration:
As auditor 260.00 260.00
For Other Services 95.00 -
For reimbursement of expenses 4.50 5.20
358.50 265.20

28.8  Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,
{a} Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was % 3,505/-
(b) Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(i} Constructions/acquisition of any assets il Nil

{ii} On purpose other than (i} sbove % 3,505.00 %3,500.00
Yet to be paid Nil Nil
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23 Income tax
A. Component of income tax expenses
Particulars

Current sax

Adjustmant in respect of current income tax of prios years

Deferred tax relating to temporary differances

Total tax charge

Cutrent tax
Deferred tax

»

. Retonciliation of total tax charge
Particulars

Profit before taxes
tatutory income taxsate

Tax tharge at statutory rate

Tex effect of :

Non-deductible expenses

Reversal of DTA on redemption of investments

Adjustment pertaining to prior years
Others

Total tax reported in statement of profit and loss

n

For the year ended 31 March 2025

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

21,954.29 38813.30
- {4,858.10}
{143.48} {1,134.40}
21,850.81 32,920.80
21,854.29 33,055.20
{14348} {1,133.40)
81,926.20 1.58,388.47
25.17% 25.17%
20,619.1% 39,863.21
88214 830.88
{143.48) {1,134.40)
B 14,858.10)
492.97 {1,830,79}
21,850.81 32,920.80

Asat
31 March 2024

Table below shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in Income tax expenses:

Recognised in
profit or loss Total movement

Asat
31 March 2025

Deferred tax assets / {liabilities)

Employes benefits pbligations
Property, Plant and Eguipment

Deferred tax assets / {Habitities)

For the year ended 31 March 2024

14526 14526
3 {1.78)
- 143.48 143.48 143,48
Asat Rexogrised in Total movement Asat
31 March 2023 profit or loss 31 March 2024

Deferred tax assets

Expecied credit loss provision
Fair valuation of assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assat

1,423.18 {1.423.18) {1,423.18)
{2,557.58) 2,557.58 2,557.58 -
{3,134.40) 113440 1,134.40 -

MUMBA}
FRA No.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Farmarly Afium Finance Private Umited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian Rupees ia Thousaads}

30 Related Party Disclosure

Distlosure 35 required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 AS ~ “Relsted Party Distlosure”

{1} tist of related parties and relationship:

Name of related patties by whom controf is exercised Sdeiweiss Financial Services Limited, Ukimate holding company
Edel Finance Company Limited, Holding Company
Feliow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place Erap Equities Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Uimited
Sekura Indis Mansgement Limited
£deiGive Foundation

Note: The abova list contain name of only those ralated parties with whom the Company has undertsken transattions during the year.

{ii) Transactions with related partias:

Hature of transaction Related party name 31 March 2025 31 March 2023
Capital sccount transactions during the year
Redemption of security receipts Egelweiss Assat Retanstruction Company Limited - 71,356.08
Redamplion of CCD Leap Equities Umited - 10060104 64
Buy Back of wn Equity Shares {including securities premium} £det Finance Company Limited 3,18431.78 .

Current account transactions during the year

Short term foans given 1o Ecel Finance Company Limited - 13,25,00000

Shor term loans repsid by Edel Finance Company Limited - 133500000

Shart term foans taken from tdehyeiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 510000 -

Shiort term loans repaid to fdeiweiss Rural & Corporate Sarvicas timited 5,100.00 -

intenm dividend pad to Edel Finance Company Limited 6.00,615.80 -

Capist edvance ghven 1o £lap Equities Limited 142500000 -

Capizal pdvance repaid by £Cap Equities Limited 14,25,0600.00

interest Income of advance gven to Cap Equities Umitad 91.176.20

Interest income on loan gven to £dal Finance Company Limited . 1.25,571.88

Other reimbursement paid to Edetweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 27.30 1152
tdet Finance Company Limitad 530,22 -

interest expense on 103 Edehveiss Rural & Corporate Servizes Limited 58.08

Cost reimbursement paidte E£delweiss Rural & Corporate Services Uimited 392397

{Contribution towards Lorporate st responsiniites tdelGive Foundation 350500 3.800.00

interest intome on CCO £lap Bquitios Umited - 465

Balances with related parties

interast socrued and due oo foan taken from Ededweiss Rursl & Corparate Services Limited 48.44 -

Reteivabie from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 4800 -
Sekura india Management Limited 333.00 -

Trade pavable to tdetwaiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,434.78

Other payabie 1o Edeiwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 200 1717
tdel Finance Company Limited 530,22 -

Notes
1 Loan gven/izhen toflrom parties are dutlosed based on the aggrepare debit amount given/taken during the reporting period

2, All above transattions are 1n the ordinary course of business and are at army length price.




Allium Corporate Services Private Limited
{Formetiy Atfum Finance Privata Limited)

HNotes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency 2 indian Rupees in Thousands)

31

32

33

Segment reporting

The Company’s main busingss is providing project mansgement senvices. All other activities revolve around the main business. Fusther, all activities are carried ous within lndia.
&5 such, there are no separate reportable segments as per the pronouncements of indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS} 108 on Segment Reporting’,

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per shace is calculated by dividing the profit atirbutable 1o equity sharaholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares autstanding

during the year,
Cituted earnings per share i caleulated by dividing the profit attributable (o equity shareholgers of the Company with the weighted avarage number of equity shares outstanding
during the yesr adjusted far sssumed conversion of off Sifutive polential squity shares,

For the year ended

31 March 2025 33 March 2024
Ret Profir atrributadle to Equity holders of the Company - {A] 8007538 1.25367.67
Weightad average number of equity shares
- Number of equity shares outstanding al the beginning of the year £8,25,724 17.34,338
- Number of equity shares issued / thuy-back) during the year {15,12.308} 5081385
el number of equity shares outstanding 5t the ond of the year 53,13 415 £8.25.728
Weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year - {B} 66.80,708 ,35,724
Number of dilutive patential equity shares - (C) - .
Weighted svarage number of equity shares for calculating diluted £pS - (D} &6,80,708 88,258,728
858 18.38

Basic and diuted earnings per share {in XHAD)

Conti tiability and €
Contingent Liability and Commitment is Kil as 31 31 March 2025 {previous year: Nilj

R hrtes
7

AT T0N

MUMRAL
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34 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits

{a} Defined contribution to provident fund, employee state i

e fund and employ

desth linked insurance

Amount of Rs, 271.43 thousands {Previous year: Rs. 4.50 theusands) is recognized as expenses in “Employes benefit expenses” — Note 25

in the statement of profit and loss,

{b} Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

‘The following tables summarise the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

the fund status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Present Value of DBO at Start of the year

Service Cost

a. Current Service Cost

b, Past Service Cost

. Loss/(Gain) from Settlement

interest Cost

Benefits Paid

Re-measurements

a. Actuaria! Loss/{Gain} from changes in demographic assumptions

b. Actuarial Loss/{Gain} from changed in finencials assumptions

¢. Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from experiente over last past year

Effect of acquisition / {divestiture}

Changes in foreign exchange rate

Transfer (Out}

Present Value of DBO st end of the year

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Asset

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Fair Value of Plan Assets st start of the year

Contributions by Emplcyer

Benefits Paid

Interest Income Plan Assets

Re-measurements

Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on the net

defined benefit liability / {assat}

Effect of acquisition / {divestiture}

Changes in foreign exchange rate

Fair Value of Plan: Assets at end of the year

Actual Return on Plan Assets

Expected Emplayer Contributions for the coming yecr

Reconcifiation of Asset ceiling

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Assets ceiling at start of the year

Interest Income on Assets ceiling

Re-measurements

Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling
excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/
{asset)

Assets ceiling at end of the year

MUMBAL
FRN No,
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3

&

Distlosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits [continued)

Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Service Cost
a.Current Service Cost 126.00 -
b.Past Service Cost - -
¢.Loss/{Gain} from Settlement - -
Net Interest on net defined benefit Hability / (asset) 27.00 -
Changes in foreign exchange rate - -
Employer Expenses 153.00 -
Net Liability / {Asset} recognised in the Balance sheet
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present Value of DOB 499,00 -
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Lishility / {Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet 499.00 -
Funded Status {Surplus/ {Deficit)} (499,00} -
Less: Amount not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net assets to asset
ceiling) ) )
Net {Liability)/ Asset recognised in the Balance Sheet {499.00) -
Of which, Short term Uiability 51.00
Experience Adj 1t on Plan Liabifiti in}/Loss {58.00) -
Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets;
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Equity instruments 0.0% 0.0%
Debt instruments 0.0% 0.0%
Real estate 0.0% 0.0%;
Derivatives 0.0% 0.0%
Investment Funds with Insurance Company 0.0% 0.0%
Of which, Unit Linked 0.0% 0.0%
Of which, Traditionol/ Non-Unit Linked 0.0% 0.0%
Asset-backed securities 0.0%: 0.0%
Structured debt 0.0% 0.0%;
Cash and cash equivalents 0.0% 0.0%
Total 0.0% 0.0%]
Actuarial assumptions:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Szlary Growth Rate (% p.a.) 7.0% 0.0%
Discount Rate {% p.a.) 6.3% 0,0%
interest Rate for interest on Net DBO (% p.a.} 7.0% 7.0%
Withdrawal Rate (% p.3.)
Senior 16.0% 0.0%|
Middle 16.0% 0.0%
Junior 16.0% 0.0%!
Mortality IALM 2012-14 (Uftimote] -
Weighted average duration of the obligation 3.5 years: -

7 sumsa
FRN Na,
1054290
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34 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits {continued)

Movement in Other Comprehensive Income:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Balance at start of year {Loss)/ Gain

Re-megsurements on DBO

a Actuarial Loss/{Gain} from changes in demographic assumptions

h.Actuarial Loss/{Gain) from changed in financials assumptions

{22.00)

c.Actuarial Loss/{Gain} from experience over fast past year

58.00

Re-measurements on Plan Assets

Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on the net
defined benefit lability / {asset)

Re-measurements on Asset Ceiling

Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling
excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit fiability/
{asset}

Balance 2t end of year {Loss)/ Gain

36,00

Sensitivity Analysis:

DOB increases / {decraases } by 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1% Increase in Salary Growth Rate 33.00 -
1% Decrease in Salary Growth Rate {31.00) -

1 % Increase in Discournt Rate {30.00} -

1 % Decrease in Discount Rate 34.00 -
1% Increase in Withdrawal Rate {1.00) -
1% Decrease in Withdrawal Rate 1.00 -
Mortality {increase in expected fifetime by 1 year} - -
Mortality (Increase in expecied fifetime by 3 year) - -
Movement in Net {Lizbility)/ Asset:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Net {Liability}/ Asset at start of year - -
Net {Acquisition) / Divestiture - -
Net Transfer {in})/ Out (382.00) -
Movement during the yeor

Current Service Cost {126.00) -
Past Service Cost

Net Interest on net DBO {22.00) -
Changes in foreign exchange rate

Re-measurements 36.00 -
Contributions / Benefits - -
Net {Liability})/ Asset at end of year {499.00} -
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35 Capital management

The primary objectives of the capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capita
requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
payment to shareholders, retisrn ¢apital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives,
policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total Debt 48.44 -
Equity 5,75,072.88 14,33,809.17
Net Debt to Equity 0.0001 -

g
S
A2
N
x/;’w/ .
e

A
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36 Disclosure related to collateral

Following table sets out availability of financial assets to support funding

As at 31 March 2025
Pledge as Avaliable as .
T¢
Financial Assets collateral collateral Others otal
Cash and cash equivalents - 6,40,494.44 - 6,40,494.44
Other financial assets - 382.00 382.00
Property, plant and equipment 7500 - 75.00
Other non-financial assets . . 4,599.68 4,593.63
Total - 6,40,56%.44 4,981.69 6,45,551,13
As at 31 March 2024
Pledge as Available as
Oth Total
Financial Assets collateral collateral ers o

Cash and cash equivaents

14,31,035.58

14,31,035.58

Total N

14,31,035.59

14,31,035.59

*{Represents assets which are not restricled for use as coltateral, but that the Company would not consider readily avzilable to secure

funding in the normal course of business)
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37 Fair Value measurement

A

Valuation principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified
based on 2 hierarchy of valuation techniques:

Level 1 ~ valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets
that company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 ~ valuation technique using observable inputs:Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and sre significant, are derived from
directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the
measurement as whole.

Valuation goverance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure
appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adeguacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation methodologies) are
subject to approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price
determination or validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given 10
infarmation that is considered to be more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also
responsible for establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

Valuation techniques:
Security receipts

The market for these securities is not active. Therefore, the Company uses valuation techniques to measure their fair values. Since the security
receipts are less liquid instruments therefore they are valued by discounted cash flow models. Expected cash flow levels are estimated by using
quantitative and qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the underlying assets including prepayment rates, default rates and other
economic drivers. Securities receipts with significant unobservable valuation inputs are classified as Level 3.

There have been no transfers between levels during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
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37 Fair Value measurement (Continued)

E. The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value
measurements in Leve! 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Financial year endad 31 March 2025 Security receipts

nvestments - at 1 Aprif 2024

Purchase

Sale/Redemption proceeds

Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss

fnvestments - at 31 March 2025

Financial year ended 31 March 2024 Security receipts
Investments - at 01 April 2023 71,356.09
Purchase -
Sate/Redemption proceeds {75,737.51)
Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss £,38152

Investments - at 31 March 2024 -
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37 Fair Value measurement {Continued}

F. Fair value of financial instrumants not measured at fair value:

The table belaw is @ comparison, hy class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's inanciat instruments that are not carried at fair value in the

financial statements. This table does not intlude the fair values of non-financisl assets and Habifities
Fair value

A2t 33 March 2025 Careying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
Financial Assets

Cash snd cash equivalens 5,40,484.44 £,40,808 42 - £40.,434.88

Other financial assets 382.00 - 382.00 382.00
Total Financial Assets 6,40,876.4% 5,30,494.44 382.00 6,40,876.43
financial Liabllities

Trade payables | 4,643.07 - 4.643.07 4,643.07

Borrowing {other than debt securiias) 48,44 48.44 42.44
Total Financial Liabilities 4,691.51 - 4,691.51 4,691.51

Fair value
Carrying Value Total

As 3t 31 March 2024 Trving Level 1 Level 2 Level3 ot
Finandial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 14,31,035.5¢ 14,31,035.59 - 14,31,035.59
Total Financial Assets 14,31,035.59 14,31,035.58 - 14,31,035.59
Financial Liabilities

Trade payables 31834 - 318.18 31834
Yotal Financial Liabllities 319,34 31914 319.14

6. ion Meth tes of Financial not d at fair value

Below are the i and fons used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which arg sot recorded and measwred at fair

value in the Company’s financial statements. These fair values were calcuiated for disciosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assemptions relate

only to the instrumanis in the above tables and, as suth, may differ from the

iquas and

Short term Financial Assets and Liabifities

in notes,

For financial assets and financial lisbilities that have a short-term maturity {iess than twelve months), the carrying amounts are 2 reasonable approximation of
their fair value, Such Instruments include: Trade receivables, balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade payabies and contract Hability without a specific

matunty. Such amounts have been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have been made to 1he batances in the balance sheet,

MUMBAL

FRM No.
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38

A

Risk Managemant framework
fatroduction and risk profile
Fish &5 30 inBerent part of Campany's Busmess aotvives, When the Company inidatis 5 S3porate of retall 1925, buys &f selit senurities o markat. o offers other products o6 sereces,

the Compacy takes on seme Segree of ik, The Company's ove: 5, and the assoiaied fisks, i @ manser that balsrnes serving the nterests of
castomens and inveators and protects The safety and sousdnecs of the Company.

H

The Company strives for antnual o - £ efforts o e e oo wraining ang 2od eriier measurer
Types of finks
Yrig Comaany's risks a7¢ groally Categtrized 15 e fobowing 1k tymes

. Bkt rek

& Crestic ik

¢ Uguindy risk

Marcet risks

gtk sk is the vk that the foir vabe o future cash Hows of Tineniat instrumments
movernents, Tne qampany shissfies epomures
ranaged wnd rondored 45 LEATIVRY ARIYIES

Prutieste Gug to eranget in market vatiabies sGTh 3y intetedt 1ate, eauity prces and indey
market tisk into cither wadmg oy nonetrading postichos and mansges each of thote perticlos separstely ANl the posiions are

Tota) market sk exposure
A3 3t31 March 2025 233131 March 7024

Carrying N . Carrying ik
pasticulsrs ot Traded sk Hondraded risk i Tragsdriak  Nonuadedrisk
Finandsl assets
Cash and caeh eualent [ . 64045048 193103588 - 123003559
Cines fieansial astess 38200 . 38280 - - -
Totat Assets 6,30,876.55 - Ga0b764t 133103550 - iaa1psse
Fiandal Uabilities
Trade payebies 454207 463247 31834 31858
Eacrowieg tother Y debit secunties) Py 4528
Yotal tishihties aesist . TERLEL 33514 - EICET)

Cregit Risk

Cenit ik 1 the mav of fimancat fogs 1 the Companty € o Sustemer or counterpwty 10 & finane armand falis 16 meet is contractial obigations, and atps pciaty from the
Company's Trade recervabies and Loans. The Compary hes adapted & paliy of Guzivig wit ' terparties and obiains seffioent cotaterst Whert SRaTopnate a5 2 mesns
o eitigatns the rigk of Snanciat iaes froars detaalt. i eave the 9215 are 10 e restnucture, siilar e sxsesameny pracess & fefiwed by the Company.

The Company's Exposts 10 t1ade fisk 15 influenced mainly by he ingwidus: tharaeteristics of mach sustomer. Howowas. ragRIgEment Sise contiders the FaIors thet may ey
credis ek ot s tustomes base, inchuding the Sefoult risk of the mdusiry and contey 1 which TULIOMRNS SRR

s Company mnages nd (ORI eSS sk By Soiting s f e 3enare of £k £ 5 WG 1o SRR 107 IENIUY! GBI /CIOuES 1Sge Banrming Lk Sreup

i £ Indeaatry SORCERTTALENS, 3AE Dy MRRITANE FAPOTTLE i FEALGR 16 B bNS

Cradit guslity of ¥ Gatemer b ¥

ssoa pased o i Tredit worthinesy ond Hitncal dedings wth he Covre
ity reviene procens aima 10 AVow the Company 10 B9Ees the BULEtis) iass 203 resa/

eravest inteigence. Getandng Cnstamer eseneBls ang
7% eapoang 2 ke (errettive ALTeng

regukaty raniored The cristit &

oraphal regian, o have Simiar BIONOMI feRtures that

indizate the reiative senstivity of

when & number of are engaped in sanilat SusneN UV, oF aithaliet i the samy
wod eause thils bty to meet contrectual ebigations to be simierty sfected by dranges I eronomic. soltiteior ol
the Company’s performance o Seveisprments atfectng st indfustry of geugraphice! katen

the rak By ingustey for thy # the Balance sheot.

a3 3t 31 March 2025

Farticulars Fmancial Astalf and Services Toral
services wheissaie

Finansial sssets

Cash enn cash eaquivalints 5.40,854,84 - - R

Grhar francial 256t 38268 : . 382

Total 6,40, 876 44 - - 54087648

As 2t 31 March 2024

Particulses Financial Retait end Senices, Total
services whoicsale

Financial Bseets

Casn and cash equnaients 163303558 : . 183103588

Totat 34.31,035.58 . . 142303559
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38 Risk Manag f k {Continued)
D. Credit Risk {Contd.)

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends an an assessment of the cradit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering
the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral. Management monitors the market value of collateral and will request additional
collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement.

The tables below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with details on collaterals held against

exposure,

Maximum exposure to credit risk
Asat31March2025 As at 31 March 2024

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivatents 6,40,434.44 14,31,035.59

Other financial assets 382.00 -

Total 6,40,876.44 14,31,035.59
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38 Risk rk {Continued)

€. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk s defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated vath financial liabifities that are settied by
detivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to meet its payment obligations when
they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances,

F. Anslysis of financial assets and Habilities by remalning contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash fiows of the Company's financial assets and fiabilities 2s st

As at 31 March 2025

th 1 5
Particulars On demand Less than 3 310 12 months yeartol  3yearsta Owver 5 years Total
months Years yaars
financia! Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents £,40,488.44 - - - - - £,40,484.44
Other financial zssets 38200 38208
Total undiscounted financial assets 6,40,594.44 382.00 - - - - 640,876.48
financial Liabifities
Jrade payables - 4,633.07 - - - - 464307
Borrowing {other than debt securitins) - 48.44 . . . . 48.44
Total undiscounted financial liabilities - 4,691,51 - - - - 4,691.51
Total net financial assets / Hities) £,40,494.44 (4,300.51) - - - - 6,36,184.93
As at 31 March 2024
tessthan3 iyearto3 3yearstols
i Quer 5 years Yotal

Particulars On demand months 3to0 12 months years years ¥
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 14,31,035.55 - - - - - 14,31,03558
Total undiscounted financizl assets 14,31,035.59 - - - - - 14,31,08559
Financial Liabifities

Trage payables - 331914 -
Total undiscounted financial liabilities . 339.14 - - - - 31924
Total net financial assets / {liabifiti 14,31,038.59 {312.14} - 3 - - 14,30,716.45
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
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38.

40.

a1

42,

43,

45,

a6,

47,

48.

4s.

Foreign currency

The Company has incurred an amount of Nil {Previous year: Nil} in foreign currency related to expenses. Earning in foreign exchange
Rs. 64,246.18 (USD 750.98) thousands {Previous year: Nil),

Details of Benami Property held
There have been no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions {Prohibition] Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder,

Details of borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
The Company has not been sanctioned any type of loan from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on
the basis of security of current assets.

Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful gefaulter by any bank or financial ingtitution or government or aay other lender.

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956,

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

Undisclosed income
The Company has not surrenderad or disclosed any transaction, previcusly unrecorded in the books of account, inthe tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

Details of Crypte Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency of virtual currency during the financial year.

Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company
There is no immovable property held by the Company as at March 31, 2025.

Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person

During the year the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans 1o promoters, directars, KMPs and the
related parties {as defined under the Companies Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are: (a) repayable
on demand or {b} without specifying any terms or period of payment.

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year

ended March 31, 2025.
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Notes to the financizl statements {Continued}
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50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

Declaration of Dividend
During the current year, the Company has declared and paid interim dividend of Rs 113 per share amounting to Rs 600,415.90
thousands {Previous year Nil).

Utilisations of Borrowed funds and share premium

(A} During the year, the Company has not advanced or Ipaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shali :

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company {Ultimate Beneficiaries} or

{ii} provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{B) During the year, the Company has not received any fund from any person{s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall -

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{ii} provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

During the current year, the Company has received approval on its application to surrender its NBFC license from Reserve Bank
of india (“RBI"} vide order dated May 30, 2024 for cancellation of NBFC license in terms of Section 45-1A of the RBI Act.
Accordingly, reperting of the regulatory disclosures are not applicable to the Company.

Disclosure of Ratios
Sr. No. Particulars As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2025 2024
1]{Total debts to total assets (refer note 1) 0.01% il
2| Net profit margin {%) {refer note 2} 37.26% 79.81%
3| Debt service coverage ratio (refer note 3} 141223% Nil

1. Total debts to total assets = Total Debt / Total assets

2. Net profit margin (%) = Net profit after tax / Total Income

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Profit before interest and ta¥/ (Interest Expense + Principal repayment in next six
4. Current ratio, Long term debt to working capital, 8ad Debts to account receivables ratio, Current liability ratio,
Debtors turnover, inventory turnaver, Return on equity, Return on Capital Employed and Operating margin (%) are
not aoolicable owing to the business modet of the Comnanv.

Previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to this year's classification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For GMIJ & Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountghts
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Haridas Bhat Rajeev Khandal Bharat Bakshi
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 033070 DIN : 07340336 OIN : 07638220
Mumbai Mumbat
02 May 2025 02 May 2025
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